
1 
 

Kingston, New Hampshire 
Board of Selectmen 

Meeting of June11, 2018 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:45 in the Meeting Room at the Kingston Town Hall.  
PRESENT: Mark Heitz, Chairman; George Korn, Kevin St. James, Phillip A. Coombs 
and Donald Briggs, Jr., Selectmen. 
 
MOTION:  by Selectman St. James to adjourn to Non-Public session under the 
provisions of NH RSA 91-A:3, II (c) in order to discuss matters of public assistance. 
SECOND by Selectman Briggs. 
In favor:  Heitz, Korn, Briggs, St. James, Coombs. 
The Board adjourned at 6:47 PM. 
In attendance aside from the Selectmen was Ellen Faulconer, Administrator for Human 
Services. 
 
MOTION:  by Selectman St James to return to public session at 7:12 PM 
SECOND by Selectman Coombs 
In favor:  Heitz, Korn, Briggs, St. James, Coombs. 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
Steven Cummings and Robert Villella, Hawks Ridge 
Mr. Cummings introduced himself as the Civil Engineer for the project of Hawks Ridge 
of South Kingston, LLC. Mr. Villella introduced himself as a member of the Hawks Ridge 
of South Kingston LLC. 
 
Mr. Cummings began by saying that Hawks Ridge had submitted an amended site plan 
a couple of weeks ago, and that he and Mr. Villella are here to speak to the Selectmen 
about the issues involved in the Notice of Violation received by them in May in the hope 
of speeding the process. 
 
Chairman Heitz said that it is the jurisdiction of the Planning Board to approve or 
disapprove a Site Plan, and that the Board of Selectmen became involved for 
enforcement action when it was brought to their attention that the Site Plan was not 
being followed. He said it is now the responsibility of Hawks Ridge to go back to the 
Planning Board to show how the site will be brought back into compliance.  Mr. 
Cummings said that it may not be possible to bring the site into compliance.  
 
Mr. Heitz said that the Selectmen do not typically review site plans, but enforce what is 
approved by the Planning Board. Mr. Heitz asked the Selectmen if they would like to 
hear and discuss this matter or send to the Planning Board.  
 
Selectman Coombs said that if Mr. Cummings is referring to the letter of response to the 
Notice of Violation that was sent by Hawks Ridge on May 28, he would like to inform Mr. 
Cummings of a response to this letter written by Town Engineer Dennis Quintal on May 
31. He said he would like to send a copy of Mr. Quintal’s letter to Mr. Cummings, as it 



2 
 

will cover anything the Selectmen might say. Mr. Cummings said that he would like to 
find a way for him and Mr. Quintal to discuss the violations and remedies, to speed up 
the process.  
 
Chairman Heitz reminded Mr. Cummings that Mr. Quintal represents the Planning Board 
on these issues and could not tell Mr. Cummings what can or can’t be done; he makes 
recommendations to the Planning Board. Mr. Cummings said that he would like to 
discuss matters as they come up, to meet requirements without waiting for an approval 
from the Planning Board. He said he is trying to get approval as-built. He said that this is 
a private road and as such is allowed waivers from town road specifications; now, they 
are being told to adhere to Town specifications which he said was not the original 
intention. Mr. Heitz said that roads need to be built to Town specifications even if they 
are private roads, and Mr. Cummings said there are waivers on the plan.  
 
Selectman St. James asked about the storm water plans that need to be approved by 
the State. Mr. Cummings said he had spoken to a representative of the State last week 
and that a minor amendment is needed, that will go in the next few days. Selectman St. 
James said that until approval is given by the State, Mr. Quintal can’t sign off on the 
remedies. Mr. Cummings said that storm water drainage is only a portion of the whole. 
Selectman Coombs said that he has been to the site twice, and that he felt if Mr. 
Cummings could read the comments written by Mr. Quintal it would help the process.  
Chairman Heitz said that Hawks Ridge needs to submit a plan that meets the 
Regulations and Ordinances, and that the Planning Board will determine if they are met.  
Mr. Cummings said that the changes on the amended plan will not be to Town 
specifications as they don’t need to be.  
 
Chairman Heitz said that he has never seen a situation where houses were moved and 
drainage was not put in. Mr. Cummings said that they showed the house moved on an 
amended plan, but it did not catch up with the Planning Board until it had already gone 
to the Registry of Deeds.  He said that limited common land can shift in a condominium 
project, and that the problem is that many houses have been sold. Chairman Heitz said 
that if the houses stay where they are, then the amended plan will need to show 
drainage that meets town Regulations.  
 
Selectman Briggs mentioned that the 30 days given to remedy the violations on the site 
was nearly up. It was noted that at a prior meeting it had been agreed that fines would 
not be assessed until Hawks Ridge met with the Planning Board on June 19.   
 
Mr. Villella said that they are going forward with remedies to drainage such as loam, 
hay, and seeding. Chairman Heitz said they are not installing drainage, just putting in 
what they hope will work. Mr. Villella said that the swales can’t be installed as requested 
by the Town because people have moved in. He said the planting is working just as well, 
the only difference is that there are no cuts under the driveway. He said another problem 
is that utilities have been installed and are in the way. 
 
Chairman Heitz said that if the original plan was followed this would not be happening. 
 



3 
 

There was a discussion of Lot #4 Bent Grass Circle; Mr. Villella said he refers to it as #4 
but it is also known as Lot #20. This house was discovered to be in a different location 
than on the site plan; Mr. Villella said that the as-built plan he brought to the Registry 
showed it in the new location. Chairman Heitz said that an as-built plan is supposed to 
be the same as the approved plan. 
 
Mr. Cummings said that house footprints could be shifted but admitted that they had 
overlooked the process of amending the site plan. Selectman Briggs asked how 
foundations were certified, and Mr. Cummings said a surveyor, or in this case, himself 
as engineer, measure the distance to the road and neighboring houses and certify 
where they are located as according to the Site Plan. Chairman Heitz said that the 
foundations may be meeting setbacks to other foundations and to the road, but are not 
to plan. He said that when the Building Inspector comes out to look, if you have the plan 
and the certification he believes you. 
 
(Selectman Coombs left the meeting at this time.) 
 
A copy of Mr. Quintal’s May 31 report was given to Mr. Cummings. 
Chairman Heitz said that the Town would hold off on fines as long as Hawks Ridge is 
working with the Planning Board to resolve the violations to the Planning Board’s 
requirements. He said they need a viable plan for the Planning Board to look at and 
consider, to correct the deficiencies.  
 
Mr. Villella asked the Board to look at the last page of the Notice of Violation, under “B”, 
where a list is given of building permits that have expired and may not be acted upon. 
He said there are three houses currently being built that are not on that list, lots #5, #7 
and #29, but he can’t get the Fire Department to inspect them. He said two houses have 
been sold and he would like to be able to have them inspected so he can turn them 
over.  
 
Selectman Briggs said that Town Counsel has advised that no further Certificates of 
Occupancy should be issued until the site is brought into compliance. Chairman Heitz 
said that the entire project is tied together, the drainage has to work, and it will only get 
more difficult when lots are sold. Selectman Korn said all should stay as-is until they are 
through the Planning Board; he said the Selectmen are only the enforcement arm.  
 
Mr. Villella and Mr. Cummings exited the meeting at this time.  
 
Builder Todd Fitzgerald, who had been allowed to complete his work on lot #6, 
approached the Board to say there is a buyer for lot 33, 5 Bent Grass Circle, and he 
would like to be allowed to start building. He submitted a letter from the buyers, whose 
current home will be sold on June 29th and will be living in a camper and storing their 
furniture while waiting for their new home to be built.  
 
The Selectmen considered the situation and read the letter, but concluded that they 
could not make an exception for one and not the other.  
 



4 
 

Review of Barn Easement Decision:  22 Cheney Road 
Stanley Shalett, owner of property at 22 Cheney Road and applicant for a Discretionary 
Barn Easement, had requested a review and vote on his case. Mr. Shalett had 
requested a place on the agenda but was not present.  There was a recap of what had 
taken place at the last meeting, which was that there was no second to the motion to 
approve the easement, so it was assumed not approved. It was decided to repeat the 
motion in order to reach a vote. 
MOTION:  by Selectman St. James, to grant a Discretionary Preservation Easement for 
the barn located at 22 Cheney Road under the provisions of RSA 79-D, at a 50% 
reduction to the existing assessment of the barn. 
SECOND: by Selectman Korn, noting that as he was not present for the site walk, he 
seconded the motion for discussion purposes only. 
 
Discussion: 
Selectman St. James said the barn is not in a drive-by location that would show 
perceived public benefit to the taxpayers, and that major modifications had been made 
with modern techniques, including support of the second floor with trusses, losing 
architectural heritage. He said the barn doesn’t seem to him to meet the criteria of the 
law to warrant taxpayer support. Chairman Heitz said that looking at the structure, if the 
front door was open, it appeared that someone took an existing structure and made it 
usable with modern techniques without attempting to preserve the original condition. He 
mentioned the new construction trusses, and added that old boards on the roof and 
been overlaid with chip board. He said it looked as if someone that did not think there 
was any historic significance to the barn had improved it for use as a garage, to make it 
functional as inexpensively as possible without consideration for historic preservation. 
He compared this with the other barn that had been approved for easement, which is in 
the middle of town and for which significant preservation efforts had been made. 
 
The Chairman asked for a vote to signify whether the Selectmen were in favor of 
reducing the assessed value by 50% based on the feeling that it meets the criteria of a 
public benefit on the preservation of a barn. 
In Favor:  None 
Opposed:  Three 
Abstain:  One 
Motion Denied. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
4 Red Gate Drive 
Selectman Briggs updated information on this matter, tabled from the June 4 meeting so 
that all five Selectmen could vote on it. The house came to the Selectmen’s attention via 
Health Officer Pete Broderick, who was called out along with other Town personnel 
when a neighbor noticed a lot of water coming from the property due to burst pipes. Mr. 
Broderick had brought in copies of Town Ordinance 1303 and RSA 155-B along with 
photographs. 
 
Selectman Briggs added the information that he had contacted the owner of the property 
at the time to request permission to disconnect the electrical service to the home, which 



5 
 

the owner agreed to. He also made plans to meet the owner at a certain date and time, 
but the owner did not show up. 
 
There was a discussion of past complaints about the property, which has been vacant a 
long time, as well as the current status as described by the Health Officer. Chairman 
Heitz suggested that a letter be sent asking the owner to secure the property. Selectman 
St. James questioned this approach, citing other dilapidated properties in Town, 
property owners’ rights, and being careful not to set a precedent. Selectman Korn 
agreed.  It was decided to take no action at this time on this particular property. 
 
Wage Survey 
Finance/Human Services Officer Cindy Kenerson has reviewed the job description for 
Health Officer relative to what other towns expect, and found it to be appropriate as-is. 
Chairman Heitz requested that a wage survey of similar communities be conducted to 
include all town positions. 
 
Complaint: Fremont Pizza 
Following up on the complaint discussed on June 4, it was reported that the neighbor of 
Fremont Pizza was still hearing a delivery truck at 3:00 AM. Selectman Briggs offered to 
talk to the neighbor and the owner of the business. There was a discussion of what 
comprised loud unusual noises. The Ordinance will be reviewed, but Chairman Heitz 
said there is nothing to prohibit a delivery at night.  Selectman Briggs will talk with the 
neighbor to get more details. 
 
(Selectman Coombs rejoined the meeting at this time (8:50 pm) 
 
Library Solar Agreement: Opinion of Town Counsel 
A letter from Town Attorney Sumner Kalman giving his input on this draft agreement was 
read. There was a discussion of the pros and cons of the solar array proposal, including 
its potential financial benefit.  The Library Trustees will be asked for their opinion of the 
points raised in the attorney’s letter.  
 
Lancaster Property Litigation Update (Map R-4, Lot 3) 
The Selectman reviewed a letter received from Attorney Peter Loughlin, updating them 
on this matter and suggesting a possible course of action to resolve it. The matter was 
tabled to allow the Selectmen time to read the letter and supporting documents more 
carefully. 
 
Cooper’s Grove – Hazard Tree Update 
Selectman Briggs reported that Unitil has agreed to take down the tree that a resident 
had asked for help with, as it was attached to a guy wire and in danger of falling. The 
problem is resolved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Complaint – Town Towing  
Regarding a complaint made about a recent towing incident, Selectman Briggs said he 
had spoken with both parties. The car had been towed by Bump & Grind after the driver 



6 
 

was found to have an invalid license, and the charge was $150. The complaint alleged 
that the fee was excessive, and that the Town should use other towing companies, 
calling the regular use of Bump & Grind a “monopoly.” 
As for the contract with Bump & Grind, Selectman Briggs said that it will be up in 2019. 
He said the Town has used other companies over the years, but insurance needs to be 
in place and the company needs to be able to respond rapidly; Bump & Grind has been 
consistently reliable. He said when police are responding to multiple incidents, they 
can’t be tied up waiting for a tow truck. He also said that the Town does not set the fees, 
but that $150 seemed reasonable. 
Selectman Coombs said that is the Town is only using one company, that could be 
called a monopoly. Selectman Briggs said that any person needing a tow can call a 
different company if that company can be there in a timely manner. 
It was determined that a letter should be sent to the complainant, to inform them that the 
Board has reviewed the matter, found the fees to be reasonable and that the contract 
will be reviewed in 2019. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES 

 A third application has been received from a resident that was denied a disability 
tax exemption twice. It was determined that the disability letter from the Social 
Security Administration is still missing and needs to be produced.  

 Use of the Meeting Room for monthly Contradance events was approved for the 
second half of 2018. 

 A request from Brad Maxwell for permission to contact the Town Attorney on a 
cemeteries matter was granted, to be at the expense of the Cemetery Trustees. 

 A letter from an attorney representing a junkyard license applicant was referred 
back to the Planning Board for reply. 

 A Planning Board Compliance Enforcement request has been received. A notice 
of violation letter will be written for Board signatures. 

 Selectmen’s Assistant was given direction to contact the school to reserve the 
Swazey Gym for the 2018 Primary and General Elections, as well as for the 2019 
Town Meeting. 

 Upon review of a Request for Proposals draft by the Heritage Commission to 
solicit a contractor to repair masonry at the Historical Museum (Nichols building), 
the Selectmen approved the wording and asked to have Ernie Landry work with 
Rich St. Hilaire. 

 Approval was given to televise the Master Plan Committee meeting on June 26, 
in which the Historical Resources chapter will be worked on. 

 Finance Officer Cindy Kenerson will be asked to submit a mid-year budget review 
for the next meeting. 

 
Non-Public Session 
MOTION:  by Selectman St. James to adjourn to Non-Public session under the 
provisions of NH RSA 91-A:3, II (l) in order to discuss legal matters. 
SECOND by Selectman Korn. 
In favor:  Heitz, Korn, Briggs, St. James, Coombs. 
The Board adjourned at 9:55 PM. 
 



7 
 

MOTION:  by Selectman Korn to return to public session at 10:05 PM 
SECOND by Selectman Coombs 
In favor:  Heitz, Korn, Briggs, St. James, Coombs. 
 
MOTION:  by Selectman Korn to adjourn, at 10:06 PM. 
SECOND:  by Selectman Coombs 
All in favor. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Susan Ayer  
Administrative Assistant 


